
 

 
 

  
  Shropshire Council 

Legal and Democratic Services 
Shirehall 
Abbey Foregate 
Shrewsbury 
SY2 6ND 

   
Date:   Tuesday, 19 January 2021 
: 

 
Committee:  
People Overview Committee 
 
Date: Wednesday, 27 January 2021 
Time: 10.00 am 
Venue: THIS IS A VIRTUAL MEETING  
 
Members of the public will be able to listen to this meeting by clicking on this link:  
https://www.shropshire.gov.uk/peopleoverviewcommittee27january2021/ 
 
Please note that this meeting will be made available through Microsoft Teams Live Events - your device will 
need to meet the minimum specification as detailed on the Microsoft website at this link:       Device 
Specification 
 

 You will need to download MS Teams (free) and click on the link to listen to the meeting if you are using a 
PC 

 If using a mobile device, you will need to download the MS Teams app (free) before clicking the link 

 Use the link at 10.00am on the day of the meeting and click on ‘Join as Guest’ 

 You may receive an error message or a request for login details if you try to gain access before 10.00am 

 
You are requested to attend the above meeting.  
The Agenda is attached 
 
 
Claire Porter 
Director of Legal and Democratic Services 
 
Members of the Committee 
Peggy Mullock (Chair) 
Kevin Turley (Vice-Chair) 
Roy Aldcroft 
Ruth Houghton 
Christian Lea 

Matt Lee 
Elliott Lynch 
Cecilia Motley 
Kevin Pardy 

 
Co-opted Members (Voting): 
Carol Morgan Diocese of Shrewsbury (RC) 

Sian Lines Diocese of Hereford (CE) 

Vacancy Parent Governor – Secondary Schools 

Vacancy Parent Governor – Primary & Special Schools 

Public Document Pack

https://www.shropshire.gov.uk/peopleoverviewcommittee27january2021/
https://support.office.com/en-gb/article/get-started-with-microsoft-teams-live-events-d077fec2-a058-483e-9ab5-1494afda578a#bkmk_systemreq
https://support.office.com/en-gb/article/get-started-with-microsoft-teams-live-events-d077fec2-a058-483e-9ab5-1494afda578a#bkmk_systemreq


 
Co-opted Members (Non-Voting): 
 
Vacancy Community and Voluntary Sector 
 
 
Substitute Members: 
 
Julian Dean 
Kate Halliday 
Roger Hughes 
David Vasmer 

Claire Wild 
Leslie Winwood 
Paul Wynn 

 
  
 
Your Committee Officer is:  
 
Tim Ward  Committee Officer 
Tel:   01743 257713 
Email:   tim.ward@shropshire.gov.uk 



AGENDA 
 
1  Apologies and Substitutions  

 
To receive apologies for absence from Members of the Committee 
 
 

2  Disclosable Pecuniary Interests  
 
Members are reminded they must not participate in the discussion or vote on 
any matter in which they have a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest and should leave 
the room prior to the commencement of the debate. 
 
 

3  Minutes  
 
To consider the minutes of the meeting held on 10 December 2020, [to follow] 
 
 

4  Public Question Time  
 
To receive any public questions or petitions from the public, notice of which has 
been given in accordance with Procedure Rule 14.  The deadline for this 
meeting is 10.00am on Monday 25 January 2021 
 
 

5  Members' Question Time  
 
To receive any questions of which Members of the Council have given notice. 
 
Deadline for notification: 10.00am on Monday 25 January 2021 
 
 

6  Preparing for Adulthood - supporting the transition from children's to 
adult's services (Pages 1 - 12) 
 
Report of the Service Manager Adult Services and the Director of Children’s 

Services is attached 

 

Contact  Carole Croxford, Tel: 01743 255729 

 

 Karen Bradshaw, Tel: 01743 254201    

 

 

 
 



7  Supporting Young People into Housing (Pages 13 - 16) 
 
Report of Housing Services Manager attached 

 

Contact Laura Fisher  Tel: 01743 258981 

  
 
 

8  Work Programme (Pages 17 - 22) 
 
The report of the Scrutiny Officer is attached 
 
Contact: Danial Webb Tel: 01743 258509 

 
 

9  Exclusion of Press and Public  
 
To consider a resolution under paragraph 10.2 of the Council’s Access to 
Information Procedure Rules that the proceedings of the Committee in relation 
to the following agenda Items shall not be conducted in public on the grounds 
that they involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined by the 
categories specified against them. 
 
 

10  Exempt Minutes  
 
To consider the exempt minutes of the meeting held on 30th September 2020. 
[To follow] 
 
 



 

 Committee and Date 

 

People Overview Committee 

 

27 January 2021 

 Item 

 

 

 

Public 

 

 

 

Preparing for Adulthood – supporting the transition from children’s to adult’s 

services 

  

Responsible officers 

Carole Croxford, Service Manager Adult Services 

Shropshire Council 

carole.croxford@shropshire.gov.uk 01743 255729 

 

Karen Bradshaw, Executive Director of Children’s Services 

Shropshire Council 

karen.bradshaw@shropshire.gov.uk 01743 254201 

 

     

 

1. Summary 

1.1 

 

This report provides an overview of how Shropshire Council: 

 identifies children and young who may continue to need some social 

support once they reach adulthood, 

 ensures a steady transition to adult social care services, and 

 provides life skills to children and young people as they leave care. 

 

1.2 

 

The report also looks at how Shropshire Council ensures continued care for 

children and young people with complex needs, as they transition to adult services. 

 

1.3 

 

It also provides case studies of successfully supporting children as they begin 

adulthood.  

 

2. Recommendations 

2.1 

 

That the People Overview Committee: 

 Notes the work of the Preparing for Adulthood team in supporting young 

people  

 Make recommendations for action. 

 

3. Risk assessment and opportunities appraisal 

Page 1

Agenda Item 6

mailto:carole.croxford@shropshire.gov.uk
mailto:karen.bradshaw@shropshire.gov.uk


3.1 

 

A smooth transition to adult services increases the opportunities that vulnerable 

children and young people have to access employment, education, housing and 

independent living. This in turn minimises the cost to the local authority and 

partners resulting from ongoing support due to unemployment, inappropriate 

housing, and poor mental and physical arising from this. 

 

 REPORT 

 

4.1 The transition from children’s to adults’ services 

Young people with a Special Education Need or Disability (SEND) should have 

equal life chances to their peers as they move into adulthood. This should include 

paid employment and higher education, housing options and independent living, 

good health, friends, relationships, community inclusion and choice and control 

over their lives and support. 

 

For young people with a SEND, transitioning into adulthood is a particularly 

challenging time. As well as the usual challenges that come with becoming an 

adult, children and young people with a SEND, as well as their families, need to 

negotiate the transition from services available to children and young people to 

services available to them as adults. 

 

Shropshire Council recognises these challenges, which is why it has a dedicated 

team to support children and young people with a SEND. 

 

4.2 Identifying children and young people with a need for support 

The local authorities has a number of legal duties to support children in a timely 

way as they approach adulthood, and to prepare them both for adulthood itself but 

also to ensure that they transition smoothly to adult social care services. These 

include the Children Act 1989, Children (Leaving Care) Act 2000, Care Act 2014, 

Children and Families Act 2014 and the Children and Social Work Act 2017. 

Please see Appendix 1 for more information about the legal framework around 

transitioning from children’s to adult services. 

 

4.6 

 

Children and young people with a SEND 

For young people with special educational needs (SEN) who have an Education, 

Health and Care (EHC) plan under the Children and Families Act, preparation for 

adulthood must begin from year 9 - see Special Educational needs & Disability 

(SEND) Code of Practice ‘Preparing for Adulthood’. The transition assessment 

should be undertaken as part of  the annual statutory review of the EHC plan, and 

should inform a plan for the transition from children’s to adult care and support.  

 

Page 2



4.7 Equally for those without EHC plans, early conversations with local authorities 

about preparation for adulthood are beneficial – when these conversations begin to 

take place will depend on individual circumstances. 

 

4.8 

 

 

 

Preparing for Leaving Care 

There is a significant overlap between children and young people with a SEND and 

children looked after by Shropshire Council. Those children who require ongoing 

support throughout their adult lives will be supported through the Preparing for 

Adulthood team. Those who will not require ongoing once they become adults, will 

still rely to some extent on Shropshire Council as corporate parents until they reach 

25. 

 

Shropshire Council has a responsibility to prepare young people to leave care at a 

pace suitable to them. As a young person moves towards independence, they 

should expect to receive the same level of care and support as any other young 

person would receive from a reasonable parent.  

 

The young person’s social worker will undertake a needs assessment and pathway 

plan with the young person within three months of their 16th birthday or within two 

months of becoming looked after if this is after their 16th birthday. Each young 

person who qualifies for leaving care services will have a Pathway Plan. The 

Pathway Plan is in essence a Care Plan, detailing the services and support needed 

by young people aged 16 to 21 years. 

 

Statutory guidance (Department of Health and Social Care Guidance on the 

Children (Leaving Care) Act 2000) says: 

"The Pathway Plan should be pivotal to the process whereby young people map 

out their future, articulating their aspirations and identifying interim goals along the 

way to realising their ambitions. It will also play a critical part in making the new 

arrangements contained within the Act(Children Leaving Care 200) work". 

"The Authority should work to ensure that the plan is owned by the young person 

and is able to respond to their changing needs and ambitions. It should look ahead 

at least as far as the young person's 21st birthday and will be in place beyond that 

where the young person is in a programme of education or training which takes 

them past that age".  

 

The social worker will consider what advice, assistance and support is appropriate 

to meet the young person's needs as part of the assessment and Pathway Plan 

with regards to: 

 

 Emotional and physical health 

 Education, employment and training 

 Accommodation 

Page 3



 Budgeting and bills 

 Family and other relationships and the need to maintain these 

 Culture and identity 

 Practical skills 

 

The care leaver will have a personal adviser as well as a social worker when they 

reach the age of 17. Personal advisers will remain involved with care leavers at 

least until the age of 21 and up to the age of 25 as set out in  Extending Personal 

Adviser support to all care leavers to age 25 Statutory guidance for local authorities 

February 2018.   

 

The personal adviser will help the care leaver to develop skills and put into place 

the things that will enable independent living when exiting care. The support will 

begin when the young person is still in care and the personal adviser provides 

support and advice to the young person on a range of things including:  

 

 Developing independence skills  

 Accessing training, education and employment opportunities  

 Accessing and managing suitable accommodation at a time that’s right for 

the young person.  

 Managing money so that young person has enough to pay bills and to live 

on including making sure that young person knows what money they are 

entitled to such as benefits and bursaries and any entitlements (such as 

leaving care grant) from Shropshire Council  

 Keeping in contact with family and friends 

 Help to find specialist support when needed, including counselling and 

advice on issues such as drugs and alcohol and sexual health 

 

4.9 

 

Preparing for adulthood team  

Preparing for Adulthood team work closely with colleagues in children’s social care, 

health, SEND, education providers and employment support amongst others to 

ensure a joined-up approach to support planning for young people who need extra 

support to prepare them for adulthood. The team focusses on long-term goal 

setting to support young people and their families to plan for their future in a way 

that focuses on strengths in each situation. By working with partners in services for 

children, it can understand the needs of children and young people as they 

approach their adulthood in order to be commissioning services for young adults 

that effectively met their needs.  

 

Adult social care preparing for adulthood (PFA) team begin working with young 

people from age 16. The PFA team will gather information to establish if a young 

person is likely to be eligible for adult social care support under the Care Act. For 

those who are likely to have eligible needs, the PFA team will them work alongside 

Page 4

https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/683701/Extending_Personal_Adviser_support_to_all_care_leavers_to_age_25.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/683701/Extending_Personal_Adviser_support_to_all_care_leavers_to_age_25.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/683701/Extending_Personal_Adviser_support_to_all_care_leavers_to_age_25.pdf


the young person, their family, education and any other support to build a though 

understanding of their goals and aspirations for the future, their strengths, their 

current situation and what support they may require as they transition into 

adulthood. For those referred who do not have eligible needs, signposting to other 

appropriate services and community resources is provided.  

  

 At age 18, adult social care become the statutory provider of support for young 

adult with care and support needs. The team focusses on on person centred 

planning, putting the young person at the centre of any support they may require. 

The team also supports young people to build independent living skills, contributes 

to Education, Health and Care plans, and supports young people to move on to a 

range of independent and supported living settings and provide carer support. 

 

4.10 Supporting children through the occupational therapy service 

In 2020, Shropshire Council’s occupational therapy service began to develop a 

specific pathway for children accessing the Preparing for Adulthood service, to 

provide greater support for young people aged 16-25 moving into supported living 

or remaining in the family home. Before this time, support work was carried out on 

an ad-hoc basis.  

 

This emerging role is carried out one day a week by a Shropshire Council 

occupational therapist. Their primary role is to assess the needs of individuals 

planning to move to supported living and to assess the needs and provide 

interventions to those remaining in family home. So far this year the service has 

received 25 referrals from the Preparing for Adulthood team, for which it has 

completed 15 assessments. Occupational Therapy also provides information and 

advice to social workers and other professionals, and has been involved in work to 

complete the Green Acres redevelopment.  

 

Due to the limited capacity available, the service is largely reactive to referrals from 

Preparing for Adulthood for imminent rehousing. However, with greater capacity it 

could be involved in assessments and referrals at a far earlier stage.  

 

4.11 

 

Supporting young people to secure accommodation 

Shropshire Council Housing Services currently employs a Children and Young 

Person Coordinator within housing on a full-time basis.  

 

This officer works with all individuals who come through the service who are aged 

16 to 25 years of age. Many of the young people are also supported by Shropshire 

Council’s Leaving Care Team. Work with this cohort begins at age 17.5 when they 

are getting ready for independence. The young person will have been flagged by 

their social worker and / or their personal assistant. Many of them are ready to live 

independently but need guidance as to how to access the housing market.  

Page 5



A small number of young people are not ready to move into independent living so 

need to find semi supported / supported living. This can be due to a number of 

reasons and can include (but not exhaustive of) mental health issues, 

exploitation/vulnerabilities, ex-offenders or just need a place so where they can 

improve their independence skills knowing there are staff on site to support them. 

 

4.12 

 

Preparing for adulthood pilot projects 

The preparing for adulthood team (PFA) and children’s social care are currently 

carrying out two pilot projects to improve young people’s transitions: 

 

Disabled Children’s Team (DCT) 

This pilot aims to gather evidence that will allow children’s and adults social care to 

work more effectively together to support young people with disabilities to 

effectively prepare for their adulthood, to foster positive relationships between 

young people, their families and services and to be aspirational for their future. 2 

social workers from DCT will work alongside PFA lead and be working with a range 

of young people and families to explore: 

 Models of working across children’s and adults that best meet the needs of 

young people 

 How children’s and adult teams can work more effectively together to 

develop support plans that prepare young people for their adulthood 

 How to improve joint working with partner agencies including health services 

 To define roles and responsibilities within DCT and PFA teams 

 To improve practice in relation to the Mental Capacity Act, supported 

decision making best interest decisions 

 Increasing DCT and PFA workers confidence in being creative in service 

provision  

 Identifying gaps in service provision and exploring ways of meeting these 

needs 

  

Case Management Team  

This pilot is similar to above in that it focuses on improving transitions, but with 

young people whose need arise from their mental health and/or trauma. One senior 

social worker from adult mental health social work will work alongside PFA lead to 

liaise with and support social workers from children’s case management team to 

explore: 

 The range of needs of this group of young people and how these can be met 

effectively as they prepare for their adulthood 

 How children’s and adult teams can work more effectively together to 

develop support plans that prepare young people for their adulthood 

 How to improve joint working with partner agencies including health services 

Page 6



 What should children’s and adults social care look like for this group 

structurally and in practice and to define roles and responsibilities within 

children’s social care and PFA teams 

 To understand demand for this type of service provision  

 Identifying gaps in service provision and exploring ways of meeting these 

needs 

  

Both pilots will be running until March 2021 when outcomes and finding will be 

evaluated and shared. 

  

4.14 

 

Case Study  

James started a Supported Internship with Shrewsbury College in September 

2017.  Enable, Shropshire Council worked in partnership with the college to find a 

suitable work placement and provide in-work support.  James originally wanted a 

placement at the hospital as this was his dream career. Unfortunately, it wasn’t 

possible to secure a hospital placement and discussed other options with 

James.  As he was a very caring person, a Care Home was suggested, with a view 

to him progressing to working in the hospital once he got enough 

experience.  James agreed with this and did an excellent job at the Care Home, 

quickly building up a rapport with the residents and working really hard.  He worked 

Xmas Day, New Years Day and was always willing and eager to help.  After his 

internship he was offered a paid role. 

 

The SEN Team also involved James in a focus group of young people working with 

Shropshire Council to ensure the voice of the young person was heard and that the 

young people we support were involved in decisions involving their PFA journey.  

James was a key member of the group who gave a presentation  to Senior 

Managers at Shropshire Council and was involved in developing the SEND PFA 

provision, helping to write transition guides and input into the Local Offer.  James 

also presented at a NDTI conference.   James has  been inspirational telling his 

story to other young people with SEND, explaining what he has done and how he 

has overcome hurdles to be successful.   

 

James has now achieved his dream career aim in securing a role at the hospital   

He has emailed me to say he will write some guidance for other young people with 

SEND who may want to work at the NHS.  James completed his application himself 

and is now looking at buying a motorbike to help him get to work more easily.  

James now has the skills to continue to progress in his employment journey.  He 

achieved these skills through a combination of work-based learning through the 

Supported Internship alongside support from mentors and his involvement with the 

SEND Focus Group.  He continues to keep in touch and is keen to speak to other 

young people to inspire them to follow their dreams and aspirations. 

 

Page 7



 
 

4.14 

 

Case study – complex needs 

Allison and Drake  

Allison and Drake are two unrelated young people that transitioned from children 

services to adult services in a joined up and well planned way. Both Allison and 

Drake were open to the Disabled Children Team and the Leaving Care Team until 

they transitioned to adult services (Leaving Care Team remain involved).  

 

Both Allison and Drake had a long history in the care of the local authority both 

starting from young ages. Drake came into the care of the Local Authority when he 

was 7 following the local authority applying for and gaining a care order. Drake has 

been living at a specialist (Autism) residential placement since 2014. This has been 

his longest standing placement. Prior to this, Drake had five different foster 

placements which unfortunately broke down for various reasons, including carers 

not being able to meet his complex needs and behaviours within the home 

environment.  

 

Allison came into care by virtue of a care order at the age of 2 due to abuse and 

neglect. Allison was in the same long term foster placement until the age of 15 at 

which point she moved to the specialist provision as Drake. This was due to her 

complex needs and the retirement of her foster carers.    

 

Whilst their care pathways were different both young people have significant needs 

due their disabilities including diagnosis of Autism Spectrum Condition and learning 

disability. Allison and Drake both required support from health services, children 

social care, and SEN services. Both were living in a specialist residential provision 

Page 8



for young people with autism and attending Severndale Academy for their 

education.  

 

The children social workers for the for the young people had engaged with the 

preparing for adulthood team and had worked together with each young person 

fully involved to plan for the smooth transition between the age of 17 to 18 to adult 

services including moving to more independent living arrangements. Whilst Allison 

and Drake are not related, they came to know each other in the specialist 

residential provision and became friends. Discussions and planning took place 

between the professionals and with Allison and Drake about the options post 18. 

The PFA team worked with Allison and Drake, alongside the disabled children’s 

team, to understand specific wishes and needs about their future.  As a result, a 

property has been identified and secured for Allison and Drake and they have been 

matched with two other young people whom they have met and wish to live with. 

The young people have been supported to meet each other, communicate their 

feelings about potential peers and build relationships with each other. Necessary 

adaptions have been made to the property and the young people have been able 

to choose the colours of thier bedrooms and furniture for their homes.  If it had not 

been for the pandemic the move would have already taken place. The move from 

the residential home for Allison and Drake to a supported house in the local 

community is planned for the spring 2021. 

 

 

 

List of background papers (This MUST be completed for all reports, but does not 

include items containing exempt or confidential information) 

HM Government Care Act 2014 

Department for Health and Social Care Care and support statutory guidance 

Special Educational needs & Disability (SEND) Code of Practice Preparing for Adulthood 

 

Cabinet Member (Portfolio Holder) 

Dean Carroll (Adults, Social Services and Climate Change)  

Edward Potter (Children’s Services)  

 

Local Member 

All Members 

 

Page 9



Appendices 

 

Legal framework – transition from children’s to adult services 

 

Appendix 1 Legal framework – transition from children’s to adult services 

 

Care Act 2014 

Sections 58-66 of the Care Act 2014 state that a child, young carer or an adult 

caring for a child is likely to have needs when they, or the child they care for, turns 

18, the local authority must assess them if it considers there is ‘significant benefit’ to 

the individual in doing so. This is regardless of whether the child or individual 

currently receives any services. 

 

The Department for Health and Social Care’s Care and support statutory guidance 

states that:  

 

“Transition assessments should take place at the right time for the young person or 

carer and at a point when the local authority can be reasonably confident about what 

the young person’s or carer’s needs for care or support will look like after the young 

person in question turns 18. There is no set age when young people reach this point; 

every young person and their family are different, and as such, transition 

assessments should take place when it is most appropriate for them.” 

The guidance further states: 

 

“Local authorities must carry out a transition assessment of anyone in the 3 groups 

when there is significant benefit to the young person or carer in doing so, and if they 

are likely to have needs for care or support after turning 18. The provisions in the 

Care Act relating to transition to adult care and support are not only for those who 

are already receiving children’s services, but for anyone who is likely to have needs 

for adult care and support after turning 18.” 

 

Children and Families Act 2014 

Part 3 of the Children and Families Act 2014 sets out a range of duties towards 

young people preparing for adulthood.  These include the provision of information, 

advice and support, working together to achieve outcomes and strategic joint 

commissioning through the Local Offer as set out in Chapter 8 of the SEND Code of 

Practice 2015.  At the annual review of the EHC plan in Year 9, and at each 

subsequent  review, local authorities must include a focus on preparing for 

adulthood and transition planning must be incorporated in the EHC plan and set out 

clear outcomes to prepare young people for adulthood. Planning should include:  

Page 10



 Support to prepare for higher education and/or employment;  

 Support to prepare for independent living – this should include ascertaining 

where the child or young person would like to live (it may be that they do not 

wish to move into independent living) and local housing options should be 

explained;  

 Support in maintaining good health – including effective planning for transition 

of health services;  

 Support in participating in society – including mobility and transport and 

developing and maintaining relationships and friendships.  

Reviews should identify what support the child or young person requires to achieve 

the outcomes and aspirations specified in their EHC plan and to prepare them for 

adult life. 

Care leavers 

Care leavers have a range of support available to them as set out in legislation such 

as Children Act 1989 and its associated statutory guidance such as Children Act 

1989 guidance and regulations, Volume 3: planning transition to adulthood for care 

leavers statutory guidance, Children Leaving Care Act 2000, Children Social Work 

Act 2017 

 

Depending on the circumstances and the time young people spent in care, the law 

describes four different groups of care leaver: 

 Eligible child 

 Relevant child 

 Former relevant care leaver 

 Qualifying care leaver 

 

The young person is an eligible child if: 

 they are aged 16 or 17, and 

 they are currently in care, and 

 they have been in care for a period of 13 weeks (or episodes which add up to 

13 weeks) since their 14th birthday and at least one day whilst they were 16 

or 17 years old. 

 

They are a relevant child if: 

 They are no longer in care, but they have been eligible, and 

 They are 16 or 17 years old 

 

They are a former relevant child if: 

 They are aged 18 or above, and 

 Immediately before they reached 18 they were an eligible or relevant care 

leaver, or 

Page 11



 At age 21, or before age 25, they either continue to be on an agreed course 

of education and/or training or wish to receive support to start a new course. 

 

At age 21, or before age 25 they can also ask for advice and guidance from the 

Leaving Care Team, even if it is not connected with a course of education or training. 

They may be going through a difficult time in their personal life or want some 

practical support with something 

 

They are a qualifying care leaver if: 

 They are aged at least 16 but under 21, and 

 They were looked after by the council prior to the making of a special 

guardianship order, or 

 If at any time after they reached the age of 16, they were looked after for a 

period of less than 13 weeks and have not returned home. 

 At age 16 or 17 they were an eligible child but were living with a parent for 

more than six months before you reached age 18 (unless they were there 

under a care order). 

 

Page 12



 

 Committee and Date 

 

People Overview Committee 

 

27 January 2021 

 Item 

 

 

 

Public 

 

 

 

Supporting young people into housing 

  

Responsible officer 

Laura Fisher, Housing Services Manager 

Shropshire Council 

laura.fisher@shropshire.gov.uk 01743 258981  

 

1. Summary 

1.1 

 

This report sets out the current work undertaken by Housing Services regarding 

Children and Young People who are in Housing need. 

 

2. Recommendations 

2.1 

 

That the People Overview Committee: 

 Notes the work of the council in supporting young people to move into suitable 

accommodation. 

 Make any recommendations to further support this cohort of young people. 

 

3. Risk assessment and opportunities appraisal 

3.1 

 

This report is for information only. No risk assessment has therefore been carried 

out. 

 

 REPORT 

 

4.1 In a previous scrutiny meeting it was recognised that Housing needed dedicated 

support for those young people who have a housing need. This report provides 

members with an update on this role. 

 

Note – this report is not in relation to any children who form part of a family unit, it 

refers to single applicants only aged 16-25. 

 

4.2 Shropshire Council Services currently employs a Children and Young Person 

Coordinator within housing on a full-time basis. 

 

This officer works with all individuals who come through the service who are aged 

16 to 25 years of age. Many of the young people are also supported by Shropshire 

Page 13

Agenda Item 7



Council’s Leaving Care Team. Work with this cohort begins at age 17.5 when they 

are getting ready for independence. The young person will have been flagged by 

their social worker and / or their personal assistant. Many of them are ready to live 

independently but need guidance as to how to access the housing market.  

 

4.3 Key tasks for this officer include: 

 

 Support to join Shropshire HomePoint – this includes completing and submitting 

an application, providing the relevant documentation as well as weekly bidding 

on current adverts. They will also request gold banding for those young people 

leaving care and also those ready for move on if they are currently in supported 

housing; 

 

 Some young people are not ready to move into independent living so need to 

find semi supported / supported living. This can be due to a number of reasons 

and can include (but not exhaustive of) mental health issues, 

exploitation/vulnerabilities, ex-offenders or just need a place so where they can 

improve their independence skills knowing there are staff on site to support 

them. 

 

 The officer also completes referrals to the two supported accommodation 

options we have in the county and also regularly attends the projects to support 

with interviews as well as move people in. They also regularly attend both 

projects to talk through any concerns the clients may have about move on 

options and their future housing. 

 

 Further to this, the officer also supports the young people with accessing the 

Discretionary Housing Payments and Local Support and Prevention Schemes 

in regard to deposits and rent in advance for both private and social housing as 

well as paying off arrears or access to funding for essentials for their new 

properties (ie, white goods). 

 

 As well as the large number of care leavers, the service also supports 16 / 17 

year olds who approach the Council as homeless. These young people may 

have never been in the care system and so be unaware of the support available 

to them. As well as the general advice and assistance stated above, officers will 

also provide support to rebuild relationship with parents / family members and 

support to return home if it is appropriate and safe for the young person to do 

so. 

 

 As part of the support to those who approach as homeless, officers also attend 

joint assessments with the COMPASS team. This is a statutory responsibility for 

children’s and Housing to undertake to determine who has the duty to house 

Page 14



the young person. Working with the allocated social worker, officers ensure the 

process is as relaxing as possible for the young person and ensure that they 

fully understand their options and choices. 

 

 The housing service will also support young people who have been placed into 

Shropshire by other authorities and wish to remain here post 18. 

 

 The service officer also sits on LAC reviews and safeguarding meetings where 

relevant and is part of the Child Exploitation panel. 

 

5.0 Case Studies 

5.1 

 

The following two case studies demonstrate the day-to-day work carried out by the 

service: 

 

5.2 I have supported three care leavers to register on Homepoint, I have placed bids 

for them and when all  three were offered a property. I supported them to view and 

sign for the property, apply for the rent in advance and apply to the LSPF fund to 

help them furnish their homes. These three young people are now settled in their 

homes and are either in education or working. They still contact me if they need 

help and I keep in touch with their personal assistants should the need for me to 

support them again arise. 

 

5.3 

 

I have one care leaver I have supported for the last two years who is a single mum, 

she has been wanting to move to a bigger home and move closer to her family. I 

have been bidding weekly for this young lady and finally she has moved into a new 

build in the same village as her family. As part of my support I have been in contact 

with the landlord, her personal assistant and other agencies. I have arranged the 

Discretionary Housing Payments to fund the rent in advance and successfully 

obtained Local Support and Prevention Funding for carpets. 

 

 

  

Page 15



 

List of background papers (This MUST be completed for all reports, but does not 

include items containing exempt or confidential information) 

 

Cabinet Member (Portfolio Holder) 

Robert Macey (Housing and Strategic Planning) 

Edward Potter (Children’s Services)  

 

Local Member 

All Members 

 

Appendices 

None 

 

 

Page 16



1 
 

 

People Overview 

Committee  

 

27 January 2021  

 

Item 

 

 

Public 

 

 

 

People Overview Committee Work Programme 

 

Responsible officer 

Danial Webb, scrutiny officer 

danial.webb@shropshire.gov.uk 

01743 258509 

 

1.0 

 

Summary 

1.1 

 

This paper presents the People Overview Committee’s proposed work programme 

until May 2021. 

 

2.0 Recommendations 

 

2.1 Committee members to:  

 agree the proposed committee work programme attached as appendix 1 

 note the current task and finish groups attached as appendix 2 

 suggest changes to the committee work programme and 

 recommend other topics to consider. 

 

3.0 Background  

 

3.1 

 

As there will a be an election of all elected members to Shropshire Council in May 

2021, this draft work programme only includes items planned to be considered by 

the committee before the elections take place.  
 

3.2 A refreshed draft overview and scrutiny work programme for this committee is 

attached as appendix 1. A refreshed list of current task and finish groups is 

attached as appendix 2. 

 

4.0 Next steps 

 

4.1 Overview and scrutiny updates this report on an ongoing basis and presents it at 

each committee meeting. This will allow members the opportunity to contribute to its 

development at each committee meeting. 

 

 

Page 17

Agenda Item 8

mailto:danial.webb@shropshire.gov.uk


2 
 

List of background papers (This MUST be completed for all reports, but does not 

include items containing exempt or confidential information) 

None 

 

Cabinet Member (Portfolio Holder) 

All 

 

Local Member 

All  

 

Appendices 

Overview and scrutiny work programme 

Overview and scrutiny task and finish groups 

 

 

 

Page 18



3 
 

Appendix 1 

Overview and Scrutiny work programme 2020-2021 

 

People Overview Committee 

Topic 

 

Intended outcomes or objectives What output is 

required? 

Who needs to 

be heard from? 

Expected impact or added 

value 

Work 

date 

Transitioning to 

adulthood 

 Understand how the local authority 

supports looked after children, as 

they transition into adulthood. 

 Understand how the local authority 

supports children and young people 

with a special educational need or 

disability (SEND), as they transition 

into adulthood. 

 

Overview report 

 

 

Executive 

Director, Adult 

Social Care 

 

Service 

Manager, SEND 

 

Shropshire’s most 

vulnerable children and 

young people have a 

smooth and positive 

transition into adulthood. 

27 

January 

2021 

Housing support 

for looked-after 

children 

 

 To receive updates on work to 

strengthen the housing services 

offered to looked-after children, and 

young people leaving care.  

 To update the committee on the 

setting up of Shropshire Council’s 

new children’s homes and leaving 

care flats. 

 

Overview report 

 

Verbal report 

 

Assistant 

Director, 

Children’s 

Social Care 

 

Housing 

Services 

Manager 

 

 

Shropshire provides good 

accommodation to looked 

after children, and young 

people leaving care. 

27 

January 

2021 

P
age 19



4 
 

People Overview Committee 

Topic 

 

Intended outcomes or objectives What output is 

required? 

Who needs to 

be heard from? 

Expected impact or added 

value 

Work 

date 

Drug and 

alcohol services 

for young 

people 

 

 Scrutinise how the service supports 

children and young people 

 Understand the role that the service 

plays in supporting other services for 

children and young people 

 

Overview report 

 

 

Service leads, 

children’s 

services and 

adult social care  

Drug and alcohol services 

support children and young 

people, directly and through 

supporting other services. 

24 Mar  

2021 

Short breaks for 

respite care 

 

 Consider existing services for respite 

care. 

 Explore any potential new ways to 

support carers. 

 

Overview report 

 

Presentation 

Service 

Manager, Case 

Management 

and Looked 

after children 

 

Parents and carers have 

good access to respite care.  

24 Mar 

2021 

 

Possible future items 

Child poverty 

P
age 20



5 
 

Appendix 2 

Current and proposed task and finish groups 

Road casualty reduction  Understand the nature of road traffic collisions in Shropshire. 

 Understand feelings of road safety, and the effect of feeling unsafe when 

travelling. 

 Understand the factors that contribute to safer travel 

 Scrutinise how Shropshire Council and its partners work together to make 

travel safer. 

 Explore how Shropshire Council responds to new models of Government 

transport funding. 

 

Place Overview 

Committee 

 

Brexit  To consider the information brought together to develop a view for 

Shropshire of the possible implications of Brexit for the Shropshire 

economy and the achievement of the Economic Growth Strategy. 

 To identify, with the relevant officers, the key evidence and related 

requirements of what Shropshire would require from a future UK funding 

approach.   

 To make evidence based recommendations to Cabinet. 

 

Performance 

Management Scrutiny 

Committee  

 

P
age 21



6 
 

Section 106 and Community 

Infrastructure Levy 

 To understand how Shropshire Council currently uses Section 106, CIL 

and NHB and the impact that this has had 

 To understand how Section 106, CIL and NHB could be used in 

Shropshire to enable or encourage projects or initiatives for economic 

growth and prosperity  

 To learn from other places how they have used Section 106, CIL and NHB 

to enable or encourage projects or initiatives for economic growth and 

prosperity 

 To make evidence based recommendations on how Section 106, CIL and 

NHB could be used in Shropshire to enable or encourage projects or 

initiatives for economic growth and prosperity 

 

Performance 

Management Scrutiny  

 

Climate Change  To review Shropshire Council’s existing work to reduce its CO2e output. 

 To scrutinise existing council policy and practice and recommend policy 

changes that would support further carbon reduction. 

 To identify and evaluate opportunities to reduce spending and generate 

income by adopting low-carbon technology and practices. 

 

Place Overview 

Committee 

 

 

P
age 22


	Agenda
	6 Preparing for Adulthood - supporting the transition from children's to adult's services
	7 Supporting Young People into Housing
	8 Work Programme

